
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON MONDAY, JULY 10, 2006, AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
Members present: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. 

Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert 
   
Members absent: None 
 
Others present: Town Manager C. Wayne Sutherland, Jr., Assistant Town Manager 

Stephen A. Moore, Town Clerk Sharon P. Hackler, Town Attorney Robert 
P. Kaase, Director of Parks and Recreation Rick Showalter, Town 
Treasurer Mike Stephens, Police Officer Tommy Lester, Frankie Scott, 
Dickie Boyles, Lorelei Umberger, Becky Grubb, Sue Sprano, Peter 
Sprano, Danny Gordon with WYVE/WXBX 

 
RE:  CALL TO ORDER, QUORUM, INVOCATION, PLEDGE 
 
Mayor Crewe called the meeting to order and established that a quorum of Council members 
was present. The invocation was given by Councilman Jones followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance led by Vice-Mayor King. 
 
RE: REORGANIZATION OF COUNCIL 
 
Mayor Crewe stated that on May 2, 2006, there was an election, and he, Councilman Jones, 
and Councilman Weisiger were re-elected to the Council at that time. He noted that according to 
State law, this requires the Council to reorganize itself after the election. Mayor Crewe 
explained that the Council will need to elect a Vice-Mayor and appoint a Town Manager, Town 
Clerk, Town Treasurer, and Town Attorney, and reorganize the Committees. He inquired if there 
is a motion for the election of the Vice-Mayor. A motion was made by Councilman Jones and 
seconded by Councilman Weisiger to elect Jacqueline K. King as Vice-Mayor. Mayor Crewe 
inquired if there are any other nominations. There being none, he moved that the nominations 
be closed, and noted that the Council will elect a Vice-Mayor by acclamation. The motion was 
approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. 
Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. 
Against: None.  
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next item is the reappointment or the appointment of the Town 
Manager, Town Clerk, Town Treasurer, and Town Attorney. He noted the Council can appoint 
all of these positions at one time or separately. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and 
seconded by Councilman Jones to reappoint C. Wayne Sutherland, Jr. as the Town Manager, 
Sharon P. Hackler as the Town Clerk, Michael G. Stephens as the Town Treasurer, and Robert 
P. Kaase as the Town Attorney. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. 
There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being 
no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. 
Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. Against: None. Mayor Crewe noted that all of these positions 
have been reappointed. Town Manager Sutherland thanked the Town Council. Mayor Crewe 
thanked the Town staff for their efforts.  
 
Mayor Crewe advised that the next item is to appoint the Budget and Finance Committee and 
the Public Works Committee members. He noted this is, technically, his appointments. He 
stated he has not had the opportunity to discuss this with most of the Council. Mayor Crewe 
inquired if anyone wishes to switch committees or inquired if they desired to remain on the 
Committees, and noted the Committees seem to be functioning fairly well the way they are now 
established. Mayor Crewe stated the Budget and Finance Committee will consist of Vice-Mayor 
King and Councilman Jones, and the Public Works Committee will consist of Councilman 
Weisiger and Councilman Lambert. 
 
Mayor Crewe explained that there are several other appointments the Council needs to make. 
He advised they need to appoint someone to the Planning Commission, and this position is 
currently held by Councilman Jones, who is a certified Planning Commissioner. Mayor Crewe 
remarked that the Council can consider these appointments individually or do all nine of them. 
He inquired of Councilman Jones if he is willing to continue to serve on the Planning 
Commission. Councilman Jones indicated he was willing to serve on the Planning Commission. 
A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by Councilman Weisiger to reappoint 
Councilman Jones to the Planning Commission. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion 
on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and 
there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., 
William B. Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. Against: None. 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Mayor Crewe noted the next appointment is a liaison for the Recreation Commission, and noted 
that, currently, Vice-Mayor King holds this position. A motion was made by Councilman 
Weisiger and seconded by Councilman Lambert to reappoint Vice-Mayor King to the Recreation 
Commission. Councilman Jones inquired if the Council can also reappoint Vice-Mayor King to 
the Wall of Honor Committee. A motion was made by Councilman Weisiger and seconded by 
Councilman Lambert to reappoint Vice-Mayor King to the Wall of Honor Committee. Mayor 
Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motions. There being none, the motions were 
approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. 
Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. 
Against: None. 
 
Mayor Crewe advised that the next appointment is to the Board of Architectural Review, and 
noted that Councilman Lambert currently holds this position. A motion was made by Councilman 
Jones and seconded by Vice-Mayor King to reappoint Councilman Lambert to the Board of 
Architectural Review. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. There 
being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no 
opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. 
Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. Against: None. 
 
Mayor Crewe advised that the next appointment is a liaison to the Wytheville Redevelopment 
and Housing Authority. He noted that Councilman Weisiger currently holds this position, but 
there have been discussions that this is one meeting Councilman Weisiger is having a difficult 
time attending at noon. A motion was made by Councilman Jones and seconded by Vice-Mayor 
King to appoint Town Manager C. Wayne Sutherland, Jr. to the Wytheville Redevelopment and 
Housing Authority. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. There being 
none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, H. 
Judson Lambert. Against: None. 
 
Mayor Crewe noted that the next appointments are to the New River Regional Water Authority 
for a four year term, the District Three Governmental Cooperative for a one year term, and the 
Willow Brook Jackson/Umberger Homestead Museum Advisory Board for a four year term. He 
noted that Councilman Weisiger currently serves on all three boards. A motion was made by 
Councilman Jones and seconded by Vice-Mayor King to reappoint Councilman Weisiger to the 
New River Regional Water Authority for a four year term, to the District Three Governmental 
Cooperative for a one year term, and to the Willow Brook Jackson/Umberger Homestead 
Museum Advisory Board for a four year term. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion 
on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and 
there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., 
William B. Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. Against: None. 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the Council also needs to appoint an alternate member to the District Three 
Governmental Cooperative, and Councilman Lambert currently holds this position. A motion 
was made by Councilman Jones and seconded by Vice-Mayor King to reappoint Councilman 
Lambert as the alternate member to the District Three Governmental Cooperative. Mayor Crewe 
inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved 
with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., 
Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. Against: None. 
 
RE:  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Crewe presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of 
June 26, 2006. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by Councilman Lambert 
to approve the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of June 26, 
2006. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: 
Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, H. Judson 
Lambert. Against: None. 
 
RE: CITIZENS’ PERIOD 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next item on the agenda is Citizens’ Period. He noted he did not see 
anyone on the sign up sheet who indicated they wanted to speak. Mayor Crewe inquired if there 
are persons present who wish to address the Council during Citizens’ Period, and noted the 
Council would be glad to hear from them. There being no one who desired to address the Town 
Council during Citizens’ Period, Mayor Crewe proceeded with the agenda. 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

RE: OLD BUSINESS 
 
Under Old Business, Town Manager Sutherland reported the following: 
 
1. There was a public hearing scheduled for the July 24, 2006, meeting of Council to 

consider the boundary adjustment proposed by Country Club Heights, LLC. The Town 
had some difficulty obtaining an exact boundary description prepared for publication, and 
the public hearing has been delayed until August. Mr. Glass advised that there is no time 
constraint, and the Town still has plenty of time to conduct the public hearing during 
August. The goal is to have a January 1, 2007, effective date for the boundary 
adjustment. Mayor Crewe stated the County has to, likewise, participate and approve 
having the public hearing. Town Manager Sutherland stated that is correct. 

 
2. Both Council Committees are meeting on their regular schedule this week.  
 
3. Mayor Crewe advised it has come to his attention that at the June meeting of the 

Treasurer’s Association that Mr. Mike Stephens received an award he did not tell anyone 
about, but the Town has their ways of finding things out. At the annual meeting of the 
Treasurer’s Association, when they met in Williamsburg, they presented Town Treasurer 
Michael Stephens with a Community Service Award. Among the qualifications that 
earned him this award is his service to the Town, and to the various organizations in the 
town; he has been a deacon at First Christian Church for over 20 years; he has been the 
Captain of the Relay for Life Team for First Christian Church; he has served on the 
Wythe Relay for Life Organizing Committee; he has coached tee ball, baseball, and 
soccer for the Recreation Department; he is a Scout Leader; a member of Wytheville 
Lions Club; Director of the Mountain CAP Community Action Program; a member and 
president of the George Wythe High School Booster Club where he helped paint the 
football field and to raise funds; he has been a member of the After Prom Committee at 
George Wythe High School; and, recently, he was named by the Wythe County School 
Board as a Standout Volunteer on behalf of George Wythe High School. Mayor Crewe 
stated the Town of Wytheville is lucky to have Mr. Stephens as an employee, and the 
Council appreciates all of his efforts. He noted it is nice that someone notices the things 
that Mr. Stephens is doing outside the Town payroll that bring accolades both to Mr. 
Stephens and the Town of Wytheville. Mayor Crewe advised that the Council 
congratulates Town Treasurer Stephens on receiving this award. Vice-Mayor King noted 
that the Council is very proud of Town Treasurer Stephens. Mayor Crewe reiterated that 
the Council appreciates Town Treasurer Stephens’ hard work. 

  
RE: BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Councilman Jones, reporting for the Budget and Finance Committee, reported that over the past 
several months, the Town has been considering a number of operational matters related to the 
opening of the new community center. He noted that while an exact date has not yet been 
established for occupying the new building, the Town anticipates it will be ready for use 
sometime during the first quarter of 2007. Councilman Jones indicated that the building is 
comprised of three major types of uses. He explained that the most southerly end of the building 
has the meeting and convention facilities, the middle portion of the building contains all of the 
various types of recreational activities including the aquatic center, and the most northerly end 
of the building houses the child care facility. Councilman Jones noted that one of the most 
commonly asked questions is the user fees that will be associated with these various uses. He 
advised that the Committee has had a number of meetings with Rosa Jude, the Director of 
Public Information and Tourism, and Director of Parks and Recreation Rick Showalter to review 
fees and various operational regulations. Councilman Jones indicated that the fees and 
regulations that the Town has established are comparable to all surrounding recreation and 
meeting spaces. He noted the new community center, when open, will be one of the most 
modern meeting and recreation facilities in southwest Virginia. He advised that the Committee 
would note that the Town wants to keep the fees as low as possible, but, obviously, the 
expenses associated with operating a building of this magnitude will require user fees. 
Councilman Jones noted that attached, please find a schedule of hours of operation and the 
various pass plans that are proposed to be adopted. He remarked that the Committee has 
several comments with regard to this schedule. Councilman Jones noted the hours of operation 
that are depicted for the recreational component of the community center may be revised after 
the building becomes operational. He advised that the Council understands that operating the 
new building will be a learning curve, and the hours that are reflected in this schedule may be 
more than are needed or may be less than are needed. Councilman Jones stated that these 
types of decisions will necessarily be reached after the building is occupied. He remarked that 
the Committee would note, also, that there are three types of pass plans to the new facility. 
Councilman Jones explained that these pass plans provide different levels of service and, 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

obviously, reflect different amounts of user fees. He stated that also, provisions have been 
made for periodic visitors who may want to use the facility on an occasional basis. Councilman 
Jones remarked that the Town is in the process of making arrangements where the fees can be 
paid in a variety of fashions, including the use of credit cards. He noted that, also, please find 
attached a schedule of fees for the use of the various meeting spaces and other recreational 
spaces, including the pool. Councilman Jones remarked that the other major component in the 
building is the meeting and convention facility. He stated to please find attached a schedule of 
fees concerning the use of various spaces within this portion of the building, as well as 
regulations governing the catering operations within the building. Councilman Jones indicated 
that similar to the recreational fees, these fees are comparable with other meeting spaces in the 
general area. Councilman Jones noted it would be the recommendation of the Budget and 
Finance Committee that the user fees as attached and the other guidelines and operational 
hours be approved by the Town Council. A motion was made by Councilman Jones and 
seconded by Vice-Mayor King that the Council approve the user fees,  guidelines, and 
operational hours for the new Community Center. Mayor Crewe pointed out that there was a 
page missing out of the schedule that the Council found at their seating when they arrived that 
would complete the fees listing. Councilman Weisiger inquired if this was just a missing page 
and not a change in the fees. Mayor Crewe stated that is correct. He inquired if there is any 
discussion on the motion. He noted that both Committees have reviewed this information and 
studied it for quite awhile. There being no discussion on the motion, it was approved with the 
following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline 
K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. Against: None. Mayor 
Crewe advised that the schedule of fees, guidelines, and hours are approved. Councilman 
Jones remarked that the Council appreciates the work that Rick Showalter and Rosa Jude put 
into all the planning and preparation in getting this information ready. Mayor Crewe stated that 
Council appreciates having the guidelines, and noted going with some of the competitors, etc. in 
the surrounding areas was very helpful. Town Manager Sutherland advised that there are 
several copies of this information available for anyone who desires to have one. Mayor Crewe 
advised that for anyone who did not receive the Council packet and would like to see the 
schedules, fees, etc., there are copies available at this meeting. He noted the easiest summary 
he thinks he can answer that covers this is $604 is the highest priced family plan for everything 
in the building, and advised that the price decreases depending on the level of service, if it is for 
individual couples, adults, etc. Mayor Crewe reiterated that the most expensive plan is $604 per 
year for a family plan including everything. Councilman Lambert inquired if these fees will be 
published in the Wytheville Enterprise. Mayor Crewe stated that the Town can only hope it will 
be in the newspaper. Town Manager Sutherland advised that the Town newsletter will be 
published in the near future, and the fees will be included in the newsletter. Mayor Crewe noted 
that in any publication the Town is producing, the fees can be placed in it, and the Town can 
request the Wytheville Enterprise to place the fees in the newspaper. He advised that Mr. Justin 
Harmon with the newspaper is not in attendance at the meeting, but he has expressed some 
interest in it and may be able to do a story on it. Mayor Crewe indicated that the Council cannot 
guarantee that the rates will be in the newspaper, but reiterated that the Town can request that 
they be placed in there. He stated he can be reasonably assured that this will be mentioned on 
the radio because Mr. Gordon is attending the meeting and taping it, and the Council 
appreciates it. Mayor Crewe pointed out that the fees are a hot topic, and a lot of people want to 
know how much it is going to cost and when it will be opened. He noted the Town is looking for 
the new Community Center to be operational in early 2007, but the schedule of fees is 
something that people want to know about.  
 
Councilman Jones also reported that Mrs. Frances Emerson, Director of the Department of 
Museums, has asked the Council to consider modest increases in user fees for certain 
programs within that department. He advised that first, Mrs. Emerson would propose that the 
cost of tickets to visit various museum facilities be increased slightly. Councilman Jones 
indicated that the Committee has attached for the Council’s review a schedule that denotes the 
current price of tickets to various museum programs as well as the proposed rates. He stated 
that as the Council will note, these increases are all one dollar or less. He stated that secondly, 
Mrs. Emerson has requested that a schedule be established for the use of the Heritage Center 
for a business or commercial type of meeting. Councilman Jones advised that this request is in 
response to an increase in usage from the business community and for which there has not 
previously been an established fee schedule. He stated the Committee thinks the increases are 
appropriate and would recommend to the Council that the schedule of proposed fees as 
presented by the Department of Museums be adopted and that the schedule of fees be effective 
immediately. A motion was made by Councilman Jones and seconded by Vice-Mayor King that 
the Council approve the schedule of proposed fees as presented by the Department of 
Museums and that the schedule of fees be effective immediately. Mayor Crewe inquired if there 
is any discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following 
voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, 
John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. Against: None. Mayor Crewe 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

noted that the schedule of fees will be effective immediately. A copy of the Budget and Finance 
Committee Report is attached and made part of these minutes. (Attachment).
 
RE: PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Councilman Weisiger, reporting for the Public Works Committee, stated that last year, the 
General Assembly adopted regulations that require local governments to adopt plans with 
regard to regional water systems. He advised that this planning process will be administered by 
the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality. Councilman Weisiger remarked that under 
this legislation, all counties, cities and towns in the Commonwealth must submit a local water 
supply plan or shall participate in a regional planning activity identifying the potential for a 
regional water supply. He explained that the Mount Rogers Planning District Commission is 
acting as the regional coordinator in the development of these planning documents. Councilman 
Weisiger indicated that this regional water supply plan must be completed and submitted to the 
Department of Environmental Quality by November 2, 2011. He stated that even though the 
Town of Wytheville, the County of Wythe, and the County of Carroll have created a regional 
water authority, the Town will, under State law, still have to participate in this planning process. 
Councilman Weisiger noted that the Mount Rogers Planning District Commission has requested 
that each jurisdiction adopt a resolution designating them as the planning agent for the area 
and, also, to seek grants that may be available for administering these new programs. He stated 
that the Committee has attached this resolution for the Council’s review, and it would be the 
recommendation of the Public Works Committee that it be adopted. A motion was made by 
Councilman Weisiger and seconded by Councilman Lambert that the Council adopt the 
resolution authorizing the Mount Rogers Planning District Commission to develop the grant 
application for water supply planning grant funds and to develop the regional water supply plan 
that meets the mandated regulations. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the 
motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there 
being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William 
B. Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. Against: None. 
 
Councilman Weisiger also reported that for a number of years, the Town has provided a 
monthly service to dispose of tree trimmings, brush, and leaves from residential properties. He 
stated that while this program is very much appreciated by a majority of citizens, the Town finds 
that there are some citizens who continue to violate the rules of this program. Councilman 
Weisiger remarked that the date for pickup of this debris is always scheduled for the last week 
of the month. He noted that the Town finds that some residents are piling debris at the street for 
almost one month prior to the scheduled pickup date. Councilman Weisiger remarked that the 
Town does not have the resources to pick up debris on an ongoing basis, and that is why the 
last week of the month has been scheduled for pickup. He stated that secondly, the Town 
continues to have problems with where the brush is being piled. Councilman Weisiger noted 
that at many locations in town, the debris is piled on the street, which impacts vehicular 
movement on the street. He advised that in addition, this brush and debris being piled in the 
street often is washed into drainage structures during rain events. Councilman Weisiger 
indicated that finally, the regulations provide that the Town will collect up to one truckload at 
each residence. He explained that the Town is finding some citizens are having major tree 
trimming performed by professional tree trimmers and merely leaving all of this brush along the 
street for the Town to dispose of. He pointed out that the intent of this program was for the 
convenience of the disposal of trimmings and brush at a residence, but was never intended to 
serve as the disposal service for professional tree trimmings. Councilman Weisiger advised that 
having said all of this, the Town wants to remind citizens about the regulations associated with 
this pickup program. He stated that the Town reiterates, debris should not be placed along the 
edge of the street until the scheduled pickup date, the amount of debris shall not exceed one 
truckload, and the debris is not to be placed on the street pavement. Councilman Weisiger 
noted that for those residents who continue to violate the regulations, the Town will necessarily 
have to take measures enforcing the provisions. He remarked that no action is required of the 
Council at this time, but the Committee did want to make everyone aware that these problems 
continue to exist. Councilman Weisiger advised that the Committee would note this is one of the 
most popular public works programs the Town provides, and the Council does not want to have 
to make policy revisions because some residents fail to comply with the regulations. 
Councilman Weisiger inquired if “one truckload” is one Town dump truck load. It was noted that 
is correct. Mayor Crewe noted that a word to the wise should be sufficient, and residents should 
place their brush out the last week like they are supposed to, not place it out too early, not place 
it in the street, and not put out more than one truckload. He noted if everyone would do that, this 
probably is the last that anyone will ever hear about it, but if they do not, the Council will have to 
take some other actions. Mayor Crewe reiterated that, hopefully, a word to the wise should be 
sufficient. A copy of the Public Works Committee report is attached and made part of these 
minutes.  (Attachment).
 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Mayor Crewe noted that he would remind everyone of the Public Works Committee meeting in 
the morning at 7:00 a.m., and the Budget and Finance Committee meeting on Thursday 
morning at 7:00 a.m. 
 
RE: APPOINTMENT – BUILDING CODE APPEALS BOARD 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the notification of an appointment to the Building 
Code Appeals Board to fill the expiring term of Mr. Phil Tobelmann whose term expires July 26, 
2006. He noted that because Mr. Tobelmann has served two terms, he is not eligible for 
reappointment. Mayor Crewe remarked that anyone who is interested in serving on the board 
needs to complete an application. He advised that Mr. Tobelmann will continue to serve until a 
replacement is appointed. Mayor Crewe noted that unless someone else has a motion, his term 
does not expire until July 26, and the Council can wait until the next meeting to see if anyone 
expresses an interest in serving on the board. He noted since there is no motion, the Council 
will wait until the next meeting on this matter.  
 
RE: ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to be discussed, a motion was duly made, seconded, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting (7:30 p.m.). 
 
 
              

Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
 
        
Sharon P. Hackler, MMC, Clerk of Council 
 
 
 
 
G:\COUNCIL\Minutes\2006\Council Minutes 071006.doc 



 
 1 

 

 BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 JULY 10, 2006 

 
1. Over the past several months, we have been considering a number of operational 

matters related to the opening of the new community center. While an exact date 

has not yet been established for occupying the new building, we anticipate that it will 

be ready for use sometime during the first quarter of 2007. The building is 

comprised of three major types of uses. The most southerly end of the building has 

the meeting and convention facilities, the middle portion of the building contains all 

of the various types of recreational activities including the aquatic center, and the 

most northerly end of the building houses the child care facility. One of the most 

commonly asked questions is the user fees that will be associated with these 

various uses. We have had a number of meetings with Rosa Jude, the Director of 

Public Information and Tourism, and Director of Parks and Recreation Rick 

Showalter to review fees and various operational regulations. The fees and 

regulations that we have established are comparable to all surrounding recreation 

and meeting spaces. The new community center, when open, will be one of the 

most modern meeting and recreation facilities in southwest Virginia. We would note 

that we want to keep the fees as low as possible, but, obviously, the expenses 

associated with operating a building of this magnitude will require user fees. 

 

Attached, please find a schedule for the hours of operation and the various pass 

plans that are proposed to be adopted. We have several comments with regard to 



 
 2 

this schedule. The hours of operation that are depicted for the recreational 

component of the community center may be revised after the building becomes 

operational. We understand that operating the new building will be a learning curve, 

and the hours that are reflected in this schedule may be more than are needed or 

may be less than are needed. These types of decisions will necessarily be reached 

after the building is occupied. We would note, also, that there are three types of 

pass plans to the new facility. These pass plans provide different levels of service 

and, obviously, reflect different amounts of user fees. Also, provisions have been 

made for periodic visitors who may want to use the facility on an occasional basis. 

We are in the process of making arrangements where the fees can be paid in a 

variety of fashions, including the use of credit cards. Also, please find attached a 

schedule of the fees for the use of the various meeting spaces and other 

recreational spaces, including the pool. 

 

The other major component in the building is the meeting and convention facility. 

Please find attached a schedule of fees concerning the use of various spaces within 

this portion of the building, as well as regulations governing the catering operations 

within the building. Similar to the recreational fees, these fees are comparable with 

other meeting spaces in the general area. 

 

It would be the recommendation of the Budget and Finance Committee that the user 

fees as attached and the other guidelines and operational hours be approved by the 

Town Council. 

 



 
 3 

2. Frances Emerson, Director of the Department of Museums, has asked the Council 

to consider modest increases in user fees for certain programs within that 

department. First, Mrs. Emerson would propose that the cost of tickets to visit 

various museum facilities be increased slightly. We have attached for your review a 

schedule that denotes the current price of tickets to various museum programs as 

well as the proposed rates. As you will note, these increases are all one dollar or 

less. Secondly, Mrs. Emerson has requested that a schedule be established for the 

use of the Heritage Center for a business or commercial type of meeting. This 

request is in response to an increase in usage from the business community and for 

which there has not previously been an established fee schedule. We think the 

increases are appropriate, and we would recommend to the Council that the 

schedule of proposed fees as presented by the Department of Museums be adopted 

and that the schedule of fees be effective immediately. 

 

 

              
                          Jacqueline K. King 

 
 
                                    

  John W. Jones, Jr. 
 
H:\COUNCIL\BFCOMMIT.RPT\2006\BFJUL10.doc 



 
 1 

 PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
 JULY 10, 2006 
 

1. Last year, the General Assembly adopted regulations that require local governments 

to develop plans with regard to regional water systems. This planning process will 

be administered by the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality. Under this 

legislation, all counties, cities and towns in the Commonwealth must submit a local 

water supply plan or shall participate in a regional planning activity identifying the 

potential for a regional water supply. The Mount Rogers Planning District 

Commission is acting as the regional coordinator in the development of these 

planning documents. This regional water supply plan must be completed and 

submitted to the Department of Environmental Quality by November 2, 2011. Even 

though the Town of Wytheville, the County of Wythe and the County of Carroll have 

created a regional water authority, we will, under State law, still have to participate in 

this planning process. The Mount Rogers Planning District Commission has 

requested that each jurisdiction adopt a resolution designating them as the planning 

agent for the area and, also, to seek grants that may be available for administering 

these new programs. We have attached this resolution for your review, and it would 

be the recommendation of the Public Works Committee that it be adopted. 

 

2. For a number of years, the Town has provided a monthly service to dispose of tree 

trimmings, brush, and leaves from residential properties. While this program is very 

much appreciated by the majority of citizens, we find that there are some citizens 

who continue to violate the rules of this program. The date for pickup of this debris is 



 
 2 

always scheduled for the last week of the month. We find that some residents are 

piling debris at the street for almost one month prior to the scheduled pickup date. 

We do not have the resources to pick up debris on an ongoing basis, and that is why 

the last week of the month has been scheduled for pickup. Secondly, we continue to 

have problems with where the brush is being piled. At many locations in town, the 

debris is piled on the street, which impacts vehicular movement on the street. In 

addition, this brush and debris being piled in the street often is washed into drainage 

structures during rain events. Finally, the regulations provide that we will collect up 

to one truckload at each residence. We are finding that some citizens are having 

major tree trimming performed by professional tree trimmers and merely leaving all 

of this brush along the street for the Town to dispose of. The intent of this program 

was for the convenience of the disposal of trimmings and brush at a residence, but 

was never intended to serve as the disposal service for professional tree trimmings. 

 

Having said all of this, we want to remind citizens about the regulations associated 

with this pickup program. We reiterate, debris should not be placed along the edge 

of the street until the scheduled pickup date, the amount of debris shall not exceed 

one truckload, and the debris is not to be placed on the street pavement. For those 

residents who continue to violate the regulations, the Town will necessarily have to 

take measures enforcing the provisions. No action is required of the Council at this 

time, but we did want to make everyone aware that these problems continue to 

exist. We would note this is one of the most popular public works programs that the 

Town provides, and we do not want to have to make policy revisions because some 



 
 3 

residents fail to comply with the regulations. 

 

 
             
              William B. Weisiger 
 
 
 
             

              H. Judson Lambert 
 

H:\COUNCIL\PWCOMMIT.RPT\2006\PWJUL10.doc 


	Text2: Back


